Minutes of the Livingston Parish Council Livingston, Louisiana May 14, 2020

In an effort to comply with the Proclamations made by Louisiana Governor John Bel Edwards and Livingston Parish President Layton Ricks the following option was offered to allow for Public Input to be made:

If you wish to appear in person for public input:

- We encourage the use of gloves and face masks for protection against the spread of COVID-19
- There will be a sign-up sheet in the lobby of the Governmental Building where you will sign and put what agenda item that you wish to speak in regard to.
- Anyone wishing to speak in person must sign in on the sign-up sheet no later than five-fifty (5:50) p.m. on Thursday, May 14, 2020.
- No more than five (5) people will be allowed in the lobby at time while maintaining their six (6) feet distancing requirement and will be escorted into the Council chambers when it is their turn for public input.
- Only one (1) person at a time will be allowed in the Council chambers to speak on each agenda.

The Livingston Parish Council met in a regular session duly called, advertised, and convened at its regular meeting place, the Parish Council Chambers, Governmental Building, 20355 Government Boulevard, Livingston, Louisiana, on Thursday, May 14, 2020, at the hour of six o'clock (6:00) p.m. with the following Livingston Parish Council members present:

Physically present and meeting social distancing requirements:

Jeff Ard	R.C. "Bubba" Harris
Garry Talbert	Gerald McMorris
Maurice "Scooter" Keen	Tracy Girlinghouse
John Wascom	Randy Delatte
Shane Mack	-

Absent in presence but watching from live broadcast and standing by for phone questions: Mr. Christopher Moody, Parish Legal Counsel

Absent: Layton Ricks, Parish President

The chair asked anyone that was present to please mute or turn off their cell phones.

The chair explained the procedures put in place for anyone wishing to make submissions for Public input and wished to be physically present to address an agenda item in the Council chambers.

The chair addressed agenda item 7a and b, "Adoption of the Minutes" and requested for both items to be addressed at the same time to which no one objected.

LPR NO. 20-105

MOTION was made by John Wascom and duly seconded by Tracy Girlinghouse to adopt and dispense with the reading of the minutes and adopt as written for the minutes dated March 12, 2020, and April 9, 2020 of the regular meeting(s) of the Livingston Parish Council and adopt as written.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. DELATTE, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. ARD, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. TALBERT, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item 8, "Parish President's Report", and declared that it was his understanding that there was nothing to report at that time from Administration.

The chair indicated that he wished to move up a few agenda items to accommodate those waiting who had signed up for Public input.

The chair identified that he would be addressing agenda item number 19, "Approve a waiver request of Section 125-3, Prohibitions and restrictions of use, to allow a mobile home to be placed in a named subdivision for Tara Still located at 17926 Mayflower Street, Livingston, LA 70754 in Mayflower Subdivision, Council District 8" and asked the Council clerk to read from the Public input list who had signed up for this agenda item.

Public input: David May, resident of Justin Drive, Denham Springs: developer of Mayflower Subdivision appearing on behalf of Tara Still

Mr. May explained that he was the owner of the lot in this subdivision and had sold the lot to Tara Still. He advised Ms. Still when she purchased the property that she would be allowed to put a mobile home on this property. He also explained that as courtesy, she had went through the neighborhood in the subdivision and made sure that it would be alright and they all agreed that they were okay with her plans of moving her mobile home on that lot.

Councilman Randy Delatte asked if this would be the only mobile home in the subdivision? Mr. May advised that it was not, there were others as well. Councilman Tracy Girlinghouse asked how old was the development? Mr. May indicated that it was about ten (10) years old. Councilman Girlinghouse wished to confirm that there were multiple mobile homes in this subdivision to which Mr. May confirmed.

Public input: Tara Still-resident of Winter Ridge, Walker: requesting the waiver of Section 125-3

Ms. Still advised that she had signed agreements with the neighboring property owners in the subdivision that they were alright with her moving a mobile home on the lot that she purchased in the subdivision and also confirmed other mobile homes that were located there.

LPR NO. 20-106

MOTION was made by Randy Delatte and duly seconded by Tracy Girlinghouse to approve a waiver request of Section 125-3, Prohibitions and restrictions of use, to allow a mobile home to be placed in a named subdivision for Tara Still located at 17926 Mayflower Street, Livingston, LA 70754 in Mayflower Subdivision, Council District 8.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. DELATTE, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. ARD, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. TALBERT, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item number 15, "Waiver of Section 125-9, "Submittals", to subdivide a lot in LA Trace located in Council District 8" and asked the Council clerk to read the next names from the Public input sign in sheet.

Public input: Sean Allain: resident of Live Oak Drive, Brusly, LA: requesting the waiver

The chair allowed the Councilmembers to ask Mr. Allain questions in an open discussion.

Public input: Samantha Beard-resident of Brusly and co-requestor of the waiver to subdivide

Councilman Girlinghouse requested to clarify his vote in favor of this resolution as this property issue is a case considered to be "out of the normal" circumstances.

The chair allowed an open discussion all agreeing of the need for this waiver.

LPR NO. 20-107

MOTION was made by Randy Delatte and duly seconded by Garry Talbert <u>to approve a</u> <u>waiver request</u> of the Code of Ordinances for Section 125-9, "Submittals", to subdivide a lot in LA Trace located in Council District 8 for Sean Allain and Samantha Beard who appeared before the Livingston Parish Council explaining that they wish to purchase one (1) lot with a road and two (2) addresses and their mortgage company mandates the subdivision of the lot for the approval of their loan.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. DELATTE, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. ARD, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. TALBERT, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

-

The chair addressed agenda item number 18, "Adopt a resolution for the consideration and approval of a waiver of Section 125-12.4, requiring an access servitude of forty (40') feet and grant the allowance an access servitude of twenty-two (22') in width adjacent to the existing home on the required forty (40') servitude width when said servitude is less than 1,056 linear feet in length" and called for the next Public input listed on the sign in sheet.

Councilman Talbert asked several questions regarding what sewer utilities were provided in this area. He discussed at length the requirements needed for sewer installation.

The chair called for Public input on this agenda item.

Public input: Janet Richard-resident of Hammack Road, Denham Springs, LA: requesting waiver (An unidentified male family member also appeared with Ms. Richard)

Ms. Richard discussed the purchase of the property in question and being misinformed on the ordinance mandates required for their plans to develop.

The chair requested input from Councilman R.C. "Bubba" Harris. Councilman Harris was not in favor of granting a waiver for this property.

The chair allowed the Councilmembers to question Ms. Richard in an open discussion.

Councilman Garry Talbert suggested that Ms. Richard meet with the Health Department and find out what the requirements were for a servitude in the back of the property, then visit with the neighboring property owner about granting her an egress servitude on part of his property to complete the required footage.

The chair allowed an open discussion and it was determined without a vote to defer this item without a date.

The chair addressed agenda item 9, "Update from Charter Communications on internet services on Red Oak Road" and called upon Councilman Randy Delatte.

Councilman Delatte explained that he had been in contact with Mr. Ed Serna who has taken over the position of our Charter Communications representative and requested that he give an update of the prior information that Charter had given regarding the costs analysis for the Red Oak Road residents to receive services. Councilman Delatte asked if Mr. Serna could put that in a more precise manner in case the Parish would be able to apply for a grant. Mr. Serna has been working on that and keeping him up to date, calling Councilman Delatte at least once a week, but because of COVID-19, he could not attend the Council meeting that evening. He also stated that Mr. Serna has not completed everything yet that Councilman Delatte has requested in order to give an update to the Councilmembers.

Councilman Delatte asked the Councilmembers to review the news article from the Advocate dated May 1st that was included in their meeting packet. He advised that it was regarding two hundred sixty million dollars (\$260,000,000.00) that the federal government has already paid Louisiana to provide internet service to the schools that could not have internet service that also included buying laptops. He stated that he wanted to get some general discussion on it. He indicated that after this story came out on social media, there have been places all over the Parish that do not have internet services. He wondered since our federal delegation had obtained this appropriation, he wanted to make sure that our state legislative delegate to do the same and make sure that Livingston Parish received that share of our money and also write something to the school board to see what their plans are to utilize this money or if they know about it. He thought that they did know about it because they had done a survey earlier that day in some parts of Livingston Parish going out asking if they had laptops and if they had internet service. He was not sure where all it went out in the Parish, but he did know that it went out to the residents of Red Oak Road. He stated that he would like to get some discussion on it, some better ideas, but basically, he would like to see that they get their share of that money and that they are able to connect Livingston Parish residents that are not connected now and have the same opportunities as everybody else. He stated that it was not just the school children, a lot of people work at home also who do not have internet service. He wanted to explore all the options and maybe see what they could do talking it out and come up with a plan of action.

Councilman Talbert asked if he wanted to send a resolution or a letter to the Governor of Louisiana to ask to utilize some of this money to provide internet service to Livingston Parish?

Councilman Delatte stated that anything that would work, even our state delegation. Councilman Maurice "Scooter" Keen, Councilman Jeff Ard and Councilman Talbert suggested sending it to Garret Graves as a "cc" along with Livingston Parish's state delegation.

Councilman Delatte stated that he thought that they should get some sort of feedback from the school board as they may not be aware of certain situations and maybe see what their plan is so they could keep abreast of what is going on.

The chair stated the action of Council would be to request the Council clerk to write a letter and forward it to the appropriate individuals at the school board to try to obtain some of that data from them.

Councilman Talbert stated that there were nine (9) school board members, the school board superintendent, the Legislative delegation from the Parish and the Governor's office that the letter should be addressed to.

Councilman Delatte stated that the school board may be willing to send someone from the school board administration to speak to the Council on behalf of what they have planned. He continued to state that at one time, the local Parish government was responsible for the cable service, but he was not sure who was responsible for it now.

The chair answered that it was private industries. Councilman Talbert asked if he was to understand that Livingston Parish received four point four million dollars (\$4,400,000.00) in money already? Councilman Delatte advised that was what the article stated. Councilman Talbert stated that the Council needed to find out if the school board was receiving those funds, are they using those funds to obtain computers or are they trying to improve the internet access to the individuals that live in the area.

The chair allowed a brief open discussion and then stated that he wished to re-cap what the resolution would state to forward to the Legislative delegation, the Governor, to take a look and ensure that Livingston Parish was getting their fair share of this federal funding.

Councilman Delatte questioned who would be administrating these funds? Would it be Parish government, the Parish school board? He would like that to be included in the letter.

The chair allowed an open discussion before the vote.

The Council clerk requested for the chair to confirm who the letter will be sent to. It will be sent to the Governor, the Livingston Parish Legislative delegation and the Livingston Parish School Board. The chair concurred and confirmed this to the Council clerk.

LPR NO. 20-108

MOTION was made by Jeff Ard and duly seconded by Tracy Girlinghouse to send a letter to the Livingston Parish School Board superintendent and its nine (9) board members, the Livingston Parish Legislative delegation and the Governor of Louisiana requesting information regarding the federal aid received by public schools that have been allocated to the state of Louisiana to help aid with costs sparked by the Coronavirus pandemic and to address learning gaps after the loss of weeks of traditional instruction for school children to ensure that all students have access to obtain laptops or tablets as well as internet access, as well as other urgent needs.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. DELATTE, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. ARD, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. TALBERT, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item number 10, "Adopt resolution(s) to issue a Letter of No Objection to Shane Collins, addressed to Lot 94 at 18421 LA Trace Road, French Settlement, LA 70733, as mandated by the Office of State Lands for application of a Water Bottom Lease(s) located in Council District 8" and called upon Councilman Randy Delatte who explained the

LPR NO. 20-109

purpose of the resolution.

MOTION was made by Randy Delatte and duly seconded by Garry Talbert to issue a Letter of No Objection to property owner, Shane Collins, said property being addressed at 18421 LA Trace Road, French Settlement, Louisiana 70733, as mandated by the Office of State Lands for application of a Water Bottom Lease located in Council District 8, with work for proposed development being performed by Sharp Brothers Construction, L.L.C.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS:	MR. DELATTE, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. ARD, MR. KEEN,
	MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. TALBERT, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item number 11, "Reschedule Public Hearing and Adoption of L.P. Ordinance No. 20–05, Servitude Revocation: John Cooper Fore/Old River Road; Proposed date: Thursday, May 28, 2020".

The Council clerk requested to clarify the need for this agenda item. This ordinance was introduced on March 12, 2020 at a regular meeting of the Council and the Public Hearing was scheduled on March 26, 2020 at six o'clock (6:00) p.m. The March 26, 2020 meeting was cancelled due to the stay at home order caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. Under advisement from our Legal Counsel, Mr. Christopher Moody, this proposed ordinance was placed on the next available meeting agenda to announce that it would be re-scheduled, and the notice published in the Parish's Official Journal.

Both the co-chair and chair directed the Council clerk to read the ordinance by title.

The following ordinance was introduced in proper written form and read by title, to wit:

L.P. ORDINANCE 20-05

MAP SHOWING REVOCATION OF A 40' AND A 50' SERVITUDE OF ACCESS LOCATED ON TRACT A BEING A 32.83 ACRE TRACT OF LAND OF THE REMAINING PORTION OF THE JOHN COOPER FORE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 33365 LA HWY. 1019, DENHAM SPRINGS, LA LOCATED IN SECTIONS 61 AND 64, T6S-R2E, G.L.D., LIVINGSTON PARISH, LA FOR JOHN COOPER FORE:

BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED HEREIN:

WHEREAS, by the official plat of MAP SHOWING REVOCATION OF A 40' AND A 50' SERVITUDE OF ACCESS LOCATED ON TRACT A BEING A 32.83 ACRE TRACT OF LAND OF THE REMAINING PORTION OF THE JOHN COOPER FORE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 33365 LA HWY. 1019, DENHAM SPRINGS, LA LOCATED IN SECTIONS 61 AND 64, T6S-R2E, G.L.D., LIVINGSTON PARISH, LA FOR JOHN COOPER FORE:

LPR NO. 20-110

MOTION was offered by Garry Talbert and duly seconded by Maurice "Scooter" Keen to republish the ordinance by title in the Official Journal in accordance with the legal mandates and set a Public Hearing for Thursday, May 28, 2020 at the hour of six o'clock (6:00) p.m. at the Parish Council Chambers in the Governmental Building located at 20355 Government Boulevard, Livingston, Louisiana, at which time comments will be received on the proposed ordinance prior to a Council vote.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. DELATTE, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. ARD, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. TALBERT, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM

NAYS:	NONE
11110.	HOIL

ABSENT: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item number 12, "Update on Deer Lake Subdivision located off of Hwy 442, North of Albany, in Council District No. 9"

The chair explained that he had been contacted by some of his constituents for an update regarding the development of Deer Lake Subdivision. It was his understanding that Mr. Chris Moody was prepared to give an update but was unable to attend the meeting that evening. He reiterated that the Council had voted for Mr. Moody to review if the proper ordinances were

followed regarding this development. The chair requested that the Council defer this item for two (2) weeks.

The council clerk requested to share knowledge with the Councilmembers regarding Mr. Moody's absence at the meeting. He had conveyed to the Council office that he wanted to make room for others to attend the meeting due to the COVID-19 social distancing mandates and restrictions. He was watching the meeting live and was ready by his phone to answer any questions that the Councilmembers may have.

The chair addressed agenda item number 13, "Adopt resolution to authorize a waiver of Section 110-1 (c) in regard to the eight (8') foot high solid wood fence requirement between conflicting land uses and allow a six (6') foot high solid fence to be granted to Joule, LLC on behalf of South Alexander Development I, LLC located on George White Road, Holden, LA in Council District 9".

The chair gave a brief history of Joule's history and the previous waiver that was granted for parking that would allow limestone instead of hard surface pavement. He explained that they were coming back to request a waiver of the eight (8') fence requirement and allow a six (6') foot fence with two (2') feet of barbed wire at the top.

The chair allowed a lengthy open discussion. The Councilmembers concurred that it was best to defer this issue for two (2) weeks and put this item on the next agenda.

The chair addressed agenda item number 14, "Amend LPR No. 20-097 adopted on March 12, 2020 to reflect "Hunstock Drive as Hunstock Avenue (entry road to Hunstock Hills Subdivision)" and called upon Councilman Garry Talbert who explained why the resolution was needed.

LPR NO. 20-111

MOTION was offered by Garry Talbert and duly seconded by Jeff Ard to amend LPR No. 20-097 adopted on March 12, 2020 to reflect "Hunstock Drive as Hunstock Avenue (entry road to Hunstock Hills Subdivision)" located in Council District 2.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. DELATTE, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. ARD, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. TALBERT, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item number 16, "Authorize a waiver for David Wiggins allowing a structure across his property lines located on Lots 12 and 13 of Block A on Paradise Road

a structure across his property lines located on Lots 12 and 13 of Block A on Paradise Road in Council District 8" and called upon Councilman Randy Delatte.

Councilman Delatte explained that the property in question was two (2) small lots located in Mut's Paradise. Mr. Wiggins does not have enough footage on either lot to put his mobile home length wise across, so he is requesting to be allowed to place it horizontally. He recently bought the properties a month ago and plans on building a site built home if he enjoys living on the property. At that time, he will consolidate the two (2) lots before building. If not, he has already spoken with the two neighboring property owners and they would like to each purchase their neighboring lot.

Councilman Talbert asked what Councilman Delatte's feelings were on this matter. Councilman Delatte was not opposed to granting the waiver and had spoken to Mr. Sam Digirolamo who originally requested the waiver on Mr. Wiggins. Mr. Digirolamo did not have a problem with the request as the lots were so small. Councilman Maurice "Scooter" Keen requested to share with the Councilmembers that he had this same issue in his district.

The chair allowed a brief open discussion.

LPR NO. 20-112

MOTION was offered by Randy Delatte and duly seconded by John Wascom to authorize a waiver for David Wiggins allowing a structure across his property lines located on Lots 12 and 13 of Block A on Paradise Road in Council District 8.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

- YEAS: MR. DELATTE, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. ARD, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. TALBERT, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM
- NAYS: NONE
- ABSENT: NONE
- ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item number Authorization to grant a waiver on the setback requirements and allow five (5') feet on one side and fifteen (15') on the back of the property due to DEMCO utility lines running through the front of the property located on Brown Road in Council District 5 for Thomas Ramey" and called upon Councilman R.C. "Bubba" Harris.

Councilman Harris explained that he had been contacted by the gentleman who requested this agenda item and he wished to remove this item from the agenda. He informed Councilman Harris that he would be working with DEMCO to resolve the problem.

The chair declared that no action would be taken on this item.

The chair addressed agenda item number 20, "Remove Sharon Kay Drive from being considered for the Priority Road/Capital Outlay List located in Council District 1 and called upon Councilman Jeff Ard.

Councilman Ard explained that he had asked to put this on at their last Council meeting and was told that this road was in the parish maintenance system. The subdivision that this street was built in was built years ago and had two (2) roads going through it that were intended to be connected, but never did. One (1) road was brought into the system several years ago and the other road was assumed to be taken in at that time as well, but it never was. For this reason, Councilman Ard is requesting to have this road removed.

Councilman John Wascom stated that he supported him either way that Councilman Ard wished to go.

LPR NO. 20-113

MOTION was made by Jeff Ard and duly seconded by Tracy Girlinghouse to remove Sharon Kay Drive from being considered for the Priority Road/Capital Outlay List located in Council District 1 that was added by LPR No. 20-097 adopted at a regular meeting of the Council on March 12, 2020.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

- YEAS: MR. DELATTE, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. ARD, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. TALBERT, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM
- NAYS: NONE
- ABSENT: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item number 21, "Add Linder Road located in Council District 3 for consideration to the Priority Road/Capital Outlay List" and called upon Councilman Maurice "Scooter" Keen.

Councilman Keen described in great detail why this road was in need to be added for consideration.

The chair allowed a very lengthy open discussion.

STATE OF LOUISIANA

PARISH OF LIVINGSTON

LPR NO. 20-114

MOTION was made by Maurice "Scooter" Keen and duly seconded by Randy Delatte to add the following road for consideration to Capital Outlay/Priority Road List:

٠	Linder Road	Council District 3
•	Sharon Kay Drive	Council District 1
	*Removed by LPR NO. 20-113 on May 14, 2020	
٠	Hunstock Drive Avenue	Council District 2
	*Amended by LPR NO. 20-111 May 14, 2020	

2019 LIVINGSTON PARISH ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ROAD ANALYSIS AND ASSESSMENT – 3 YEAR PRIORITY LIST

<u>Road Name</u>	Council District	Priority Rank	Priority Score	LP Resolution Number	Date Adopted
North Doyle Road (Phase 1)	1	1	n/a	LPR NO. 17-092	March 9, 2017
Caraway Road	2	2	n/a	LPR NO. 15-095	March 17, 2015
Herman Ernest Road (Phase 2 – Off of Cara	2 way)	3	n/a	LPR NO. 15-215	August 13, 2015
Clinton Allen Road (Phase 1)	3	4	n/a	LPR NO. 18-245	August 9, 2018
Jason Drive	4	5	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Carolyn Avenue	4	6	n/a	LPR NO. 18-158	May 10, 2018
Cottonwood Drive	4	7	n/a	LPR NO. 17-092	March 9, 2017
Harris Road	5	8	n/a	LPR NO. 16-044	January 28, 2016
South Satsuma Road (b/t Perrilloux Road an	6 nd Drakef	9 ord McM	n/a Iorris)	LPR NO. 15-215	August 13, 2015
Duff Road	7	10	n/a	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Bull Run Road (South Section)	8	11	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Gum Swamp Road (North Section)	8	12	n/a	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017

Cedar Street	8	13	n/a	LPR NO. 19-041	January 24, 2019
Dutch Lane	8	14	n/a	LPR NO. 19-041	January 24, 2019
Swamp Drive (Phase 2)	8	15	n/a	LPR NO. 19-041	January 24, 2019
Pine Street	9	16	n/a	LPR NO. 16-199	May 26, 2016
Henry White Road	9	17	n/a	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
Mecca Road Extension	n 6	tbd	n/a	LPR NO. 19-338	October 24, 2019
Cheryll Drive	2	tbd	n/a	LPR NO. 19-338	October 24, 2019

Roads that are nominated for consideration <u>to amend the Priority List</u>	Council District	Priority Rank	Resolution Number	Resolution Date of Adoption
Henry Road	8	tbs	LPR NO. 15-086	March 12, 2015
(North Section)				
Henry Road	8	tbs	LPR NO. 15-086	March 12, 2015
(South Section)	_			
Lynn Street	7	tbs	LPR NO. 15-095	March 17, 2015
Perkins Road North	2	tbs	LPR NO. 15-095	March 17, 2015
Perkins Road South	3	tbs	LPR NO. 15-095	March 17, 2015
North Achord Road	1	tbs	LPR NO. 15-167	June 11, 2015
Ball Park Road	7	tbs	LPR NO. 15-215	August 13, 2015
Karli Lane (Phase 2– Off of Ross Trail/Wagner Road)	9	tbs	LPR NO. 15-215	August 13, 2015
South Satsuma Road (Phase 3)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 15-215	August 13, 2015
Timberwood Drive	7	tbs	LPR NO. 15-215	August 13, 2015
Peak Lane	7	tbs	LPR NO. 15-215	August 23, 2015
Canyon Road	5	tbs	LPR NO. 15-305	December 3, 2015
Debbie Lane	5	tbs	LPR NO. 15-305	December 3, 2015
Live Oak Village Road	2	tbs	LPR NO. 15-305	December 3, 2015
Greystone Drive	5	tbs	LPR NO. 15-305	December 3, 2015
Bush Lane	2	tbs	LPR NO. 16-044	January 28, 2016
Hillon Hood Road	5	tbs	LPR NO. 16-044	January 28, 2016
Charles Holden Road	9	tbs	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
George White Road (East Section)	9	tbs	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
George White Road (West Section)	9	tbs	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
John Barber Road	9	tbs	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
Nature's Way	1	tbs	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
Old CC Road	9	tbs	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
(formerly known as Slaughter Pen Road)				
Pete Smith Road	9	tbs	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
Sidney Woods Road	9	tbs	LPR NO. 16-086	February 25, 2016
Desert Willow Avenue	4	tbs	LPR NO. 17-016	January 12, 2017

Bull Run Road	8	tbs	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
(North Section)				
Leader Road	8	45	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Crain Road	9	tbs	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Gum Swamp Road	8	tbs	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
(South Section) Olah Lane	9	tbs	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
				-
Pine Bluff Road	4	tbs	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Wagner Road (East section)	9	tbs	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
Wagner Road	9	tbs	LPR NO. 17-052	January 26, 2017
(West section)				
Kingfisher Street	2	tbs	LPR NO. 17-055	February 9, 2017
McLin Road	1	tbs	LPR NO. 17-092	March 9, 2017
North Doyle Road	1	tbs	LPR NO. 17-092	March 9, 2017
(Phase 2) Sims Road	2	tbs	LPR NO. 17-266	August 10, 2017
Spring Lake Drive	1	tbs	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
(North Section)	1	105	LI K NO. 17-370	
Woodland Street	5	tbs	LPR NO. 17-396	December 14, 2017
(South Section) Cedar Street	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-041	February 8, 2018
Brookfield Drive	4	tbs	LPR NO. 18-158	May 10, 2018
Sharon Street	4	tbs	LPR NO. 18-158	May 10, 2018
Canterbury Avenue	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
New Port Drive	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
Balmoral Drive	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
Timberlake Drive	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
Shady Hollow Drive	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
Timber Ridge Drive	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
Alder Drive	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-015	January 11, 2018
Cedar Street	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-041	February 8, 2018
Stonehenge Drive (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Abbey Lane (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Coronation Drive (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Buckingham Avenue (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Windsor Avenue (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Hampton Court (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Wimbledon Drive (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Big Ben Drive (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Parliament Drive (Westminster Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Parkwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Greenwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Havenwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Hollyridge Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Glenbrooke Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Mulberry Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Hazelwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018

Willow Wood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Burlwood Avenue (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Poplar Glen Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Robindale Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Millstone Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Cottonwood Court (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Avondale Court (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Silverwood Court (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Maplewood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Sprucewood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Pinebrook Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Mimosa Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Bell Wood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Palmwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Ribbonwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Buffwood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Sagewood Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Wynnewood Avenue (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Myrtle Wood Court (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Bronzewood Avenue (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Birchwood Court (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Mirkwood Court (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Jimmy Drive (Woodland Crossing)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 18-216	July 12, 2018
Clinton Allen Road (Phase 2)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 18-245	August 9, 2018
Fountain View Drive (Spring Lake subdivision)	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Ruby Lake Drive (Spring Lake subdivision)	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Diamond Lake Drive (Spring Lake subdivision)	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Garnet Lake Drive (Spring Lake subdivision)	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Lake Terrace Drive (Spring Lake subdivision)	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Sapphire Drive (Spring Lake subdivision)	1	tbs	LPR NO. 18-345	November 8, 2018
Rosemont Avenue (South Point Subdivision)	5	tbs	LPR NO. 18-362	December 6, 2018
Meadow Wood Boulevard	4	tbs	LPR NO. 18-380	December 20, 2018
Myrtle Street	4	tbs	LPR NO. 18-380	December 20, 2018
Phillip Richardson Road	8	tbs	LPR NO. 18-380	December 20, 2018
Richardson Lane	8	tbs	LPR NO. 18-380	December 20, 2018
Parkway Drive (South Haven Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-041	January 24, 2019
Beregi Street	9	tbs	LPR NO. 19-041	January 24, 2019
Elsie Lane (formerly known as Lowe Lane)	9	tbs	LPR NO. 19-041	January 24, 2019
Cheryl Drive (between Arlene Drive and Cheray Drive)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 19-136	April 25, 2019
Melrose Avenue (Richmond Place Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 19-136	April 25, 2019
Cooper Street	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-173	May 23, 2019
King George Bay	8	tbs	LPR NO. 19-258	August 8, 2019
Hunter Brooke	2	tbs	LPR NO. 19-258	August 8, 2019
Grand Lake Boulevard (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019
Lake Borgne (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019

Lake Sabine Drive (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019
Lake Lery Drive (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019
Lake Bruin Drive (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019
Lake Bistneau Drive (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019
Black Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019
White Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019
Cross Lake Avenue (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019
Lake Salvador Drive (Lakeside Estates)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278	August 22, 2019
Homer Harris Road Oma Harris Road	5	tbs	LPR NO. 19-278 *LPR NO. 19-335	August 22, 2019 *October 24, 2019
*Minute correction of road name on October 24, 2019			(*Minute correction of road name)	
Dunmark Road	3	tbs	LPR NO. 19-329	October 10, 2019
Lod Stafford Road	1	tbs	LPR NO. 19-329	October 10, 2019
Mack Road	1	tbs	LPR NO. 19-329	October 10, 2019
Mecca Road Extension	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-338	October 24, 2019
Rosemont Avenue (Southpoint Subdivision)	5	tbs	LPR NO. 19-376	November 21, 2019
Whitehall Avenue (Southpoint Subdivision)	5	tbs	LPR NO. 19-376	November 21, 2019
Pinecrest Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-376	November 21, 2019
Meadow View Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-376	November 21, 2019
Copperwood Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-376	November 21, 2019
Lemonwood Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-376	November 21, 2019
Pleasant Knoll Drive (Forest Ridge Subdivision)	6	tbs	LPR NO. 19-376	November 21, 2019
Hunter Brook Lane	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
Dialtha Drive (Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
R Dawes Drive (Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
Lucas Drive (Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
Mary Drive (Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
Page Drive (Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
Ola Drive (Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
Wyeth Drive (Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
Stanton Hall Avenue (Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
Rosalie Avenue (Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
Tezcuco Avenue(Easterly Lakes Subdivision)	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-064	February 6, 2020
Travis Street	7	tbs	LPR NO. 20-097	March 12, 2020
Sharon Kay Drive **Removed from the list for consideration	1	tbs	LPR NO. 20-097 LPR NO. 20-113	March 12, 2020 May 14, 2020
Meadow Lane	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-097	March 12, 2020
Hunstock Drive Avenue ***Amended on May 14, 2020 changing from Drive to Avenue	2	tbs	LPR NO. 20-097 LPR NO. 20-111	March 12, 2020 May 14, 2020
Burlingame	4	tbs	LPR NO. 20-097	March 12, 2020
Linder Road	3	tbs	LPR NO. 20-114	May 14, 2020

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. DELATTE, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. ARD, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. TALBERT, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

LPR NO. 20-115

MOTION was made by Randy Delatte and duly seconded by R.C. "Bubba" Harris to name an unnamed road, "Toni Lane", located off of Blahut Road in Council District 8.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS:	MR. DELATTE, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. ARD, MR. KEEN,
	MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. TALBERT, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item number 23, "Adopt resolution to ratify the installation of a 3-Way Stop at Fairlane Drive and Thunderbird Place in Land O Pines Subdivision" and called upon Councilman Maurice "Scooter" Keen.

Councilman Keen briefly explained the need for this ratification and asked for the Councilmen's support.

LPR NO. 20-116

MOTION was made by Tracy Girlinghouse and duly seconded by John Wascom to ratify the installation of a 3-Way Stop at Fairlane Drive and Thunderbird Place in Land O Pines Subdivision located in Council District 3.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. DELATTE, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. ARD, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. TALBERT, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item number 24, "Adopt a resolution to address the speed limit posting on Ben Fugler Road to establish if the current 30 mph speed limit is appropriate and make possible amendments as determined by the recommendation of the Parish Traffic engineer located in Council District 2" and called upon Councilman Garry Talbert.

Councilman Talbert explained that Ben Fugler is a road that is currently posted at 30 mph and has a lot of people that live on this road and he had received many calls from constituents requesting for the Council to reduce the speed limit. He advised that people are traveling 50 mph on this road that is posted 30 mph and he did not want to adjust the speed limit without determination from expert traffic professionals.

The chair allowed a very lengthy open discussion.

LPR NO. 20-117

MOTION was made by Garry Talbert and duly seconded by John Wascom to request Administration to assign a traffic engineer to study and make a determination what the safest and most appropriate posted speed limit would be on Ben Fugler Road located in Council District 2.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. DELATTE, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. ARD, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. TALBERT, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item(s) number(s) 25, a through d, "Board (re)appointment(s):"

LPR NO. 20-118

MOTION was made by Gerald McMorris and duly seconded by John Wascom to replace Livingston Parish Planning Commission board member Kenny Morrison (Council District 6 appointment), who can no longer serve on this commission, with Derek Babcock (Council District 6) to serve the remainder of this four (4) year term which coincides with the Livingston Parish Council members' terms of office, end of term being January 8, 2024.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. DELATTE, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. ARD, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. TALBERT, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

LPR NO. 20-119

MOTION was made by Gerald McMorris and duly seconded by Jeff Ard to replace Livingston Parish Master Plan Review Committee board member Dominick Abrams (Council District 6 appointment), due to lack of participation and absences, with Kevin Hull (Council District 6) whose term has no expiration and shall serve at the pleasure of the Livingston Parish Council.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS:	MR. DELATTE, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. ARD, MR. KEEN,
	MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. TALBERT, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM

- ABSENT: NONE
- ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

LPR NO. 20-120

MOTION was made by Randy Delatte and duly seconded by Gerald McMorris to reappoint board member, Trent Acosta (Council District 8), to Livingston Parish Recreation District No. 5 South, whose five (5) year term will expire on May 1, 2025.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. DELATTE, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. ARD, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. TALBERT, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

Councilman Jeff Ard requested that his board reappointment for Jonathan Taylor of Recreation District No. 7 be renewed from month to month because Mr. Taylor had announced that he is running for mayor of the Town of Livingston, and if he wins, he will not be allowed to be on the board. Councilman Ard did not want to lose Mr. Taylor as a board appointment and will reappoint him if he does not win the mayoral election scheduled later in the fall.

The chair declared that there was no action on agenda item, 25d, "Recreation District No. 7" and Mr. Taylor's board appointment would be renewed automatically on a month by month basis.

The chair being advised that there was nothing to report for agenda item 26, "District Attorney Report(s):", moved on to the next agenda item.

Councilman Tracy Girlinghouse reported that the Ordinance committee would meeting the following week on Tuesday, May 19th at six o'clock (6:00) p.m. and would be discussing the road overlay program to create the subset for roads that do not meet the current standard to create a clear category for this.

Councilman Randy Delatte requested that the committee discuss amending the sewer permitting process.

Councilman Girlinghouse agreed and discussed upcoming meetings and his intentions as chairman of this committee.

Councilman Jeff Ard reported that the Finance committee had met earlier that evening. He advised that Jennifer Meyers, Finance Director, advised that the numbers looked good, there had been no fall of anything, and the March numbers were dead on of what they had expected. Ms. Meyers did have an item that needed action from the full Council membership to adopt the 2019 Compliance Questionnaire. Councilman Garry Talbert concurred and advised that it was something that was required every year.

LPR NO. 20-121

MOTION was made by Garry Talbert and duly seconded by Jeff Ard to accept the completed 2019 Compliance Questionnaire for Audit Engagements of Government Entities for the period of January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. DELATTE, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. ARD, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. TALBERT, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted.

The chair addressed agenda item 28, "Councilmen's comments" and called upon Councilman Maurice "Scooter" Keen who acknowledged that it was his son's birthday.

Councilman Tracy Girlinghouse wished to confirm the time of six o'clock (6:00) p.m. for the Ordinance committee and encouraged the Councilmembers if they had any ordinances to please bring them before the Ordinance committee for discussion.

Having no further business, a motion to adjourn was requested until the next regular meeting that was scheduled on Thursday, May 28, 2020, at the hour of six o'clock (6:00) p.m. in Livingston, Louisiana.

LPR NO. 20-122

MOTION was offered by Jeff Ard and duly seconded by Garry Talbert to adjourn the May 14, 2020 regular meeting of the Livingston Parish Council.

Upon being submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as follows:

YEAS: MR. DELATTE, MR. HARRIS, MR. MCMORRIS, MR. ARD, MR. KEEN, MR. GIRLINGHOUSE, MR. TALBERT, MR. MACK, MR. WASCOM

NAYS: NONE

ABSENT: NONE

ABSTAIN: NONE

Thereupon the chair declared that the Motion had carried and was adopted and that the meeting was adjourned.

<u>/s/ Sandy C. Teal</u>

Sandy C. Teal, Council Clerk

<u>/s/ Shane</u> Mack

Shane Mack, Council Chairman